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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

1. Please let us know which relevant 
invoice we have to include in our 
tender documentation which will 
prove fields of specialisation and 
experience form 5 and 6 (page 144 
and 145)? Can we fulfil our tender 
documentation with included data on 
your forms?  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please refer to articles 11, 21.2 and 
26 of the Instructions to tenderers. 
Please note that relevant invoices 
corroborating the declaration of the 
tenderer included in the item 5 and 6 
of the tender form must be provided 
only in case of award of the contract. 
In case of false declarations during 
the tender procedure, the tenderer will 
have the bank guarantee seized and 
will be subjected to administrative 
penalties (article 23 of the Instructions 
to tenderers). 
Forms in items 5 and 6 should be 
fulfilled according to instructions. Data 
should be written on given forms.  

2. Please let us know what kind of proof, 
relevant invoice should we provide to 
you proving our completed 
successfully delivery- confirmation 
delivery from purchaser, copy of the 
Contract, delivery note? 

 

Please refer to article 26 of the 

Instructions to tenderers. Please note 

that only after the award of the contract 

to the successful tenderer, such proves 

will be requested to be provided. 



3. Please let us know if we can modify 
specimen tender guarantee which in 
addition means that instead of the 
sentence [and in any case at the latest 
on (1 year after the deadline for 

submission of tenders)][1]replace with 
exact date, 29.09.2012. Please confirm 
the sentence from the specimen tender 
guarantee below: 

We note that the guarantee will be 

released at the latest within 45 days of the 

expiry of the tender validity period, 

including any extensions, in accordance 

with Article 8 of the Instructions to 

Tenderers (and in any case at the latest 

on 29.09.2012). 

 

Please see p.151 section 1: 

“Important note: the content of this 

specimen tender guarantee cannot be 

modified; any change to its imperative 

elements such as amount, validity 

period, and courts applicable would 

lead to the rejection of the tender 

concerned”. However the inclusion of 

the exact date is not considered an 

alteration of the template, on the 

contrary it is expected the insertion of 

the exact date as proposed by you. 

The sentence about the release within 

45 days is confirmed. The date one 

year after the deadline for submission 

of the tender is 15.11.2012 (deadline 

is no longer on the 29th of September 

2011) 

 
4. Please let us know if we can offer 

wheel drive 6x2/4 or 6x2-4, standard 
wheel drive for Refuse Collection 
Vehicles?  

Please note that 6x4, 6x2/4 and 6x2-4 
are all acceptable. Danilovgrad is in a 
not hilly area of the country. 
 
 

 
 

 



5. Please let us know if we can offer 
Gearbox automated instead of 
automatic? In years of manufacturing 
our analysis have shown us that 
automated gearboxes have lowered 
maintenance and service costs and are 
in accordance with Refuse collection 
vehicles.  

 

Automatic and automated are both 
acceptable.  
 
 

6. Please inform us if a sworn statement 
for service from our local authorised 
service workshop is in accordance with 
the tender request mentioned which 
proves a local specialised mechanical 
workshop and authorised service 
workshop? 

 

It is important that Tenderer has the 
capacity to guarantee directly or 
indirectly (through, for instance, an 
agreement with a specialised 
mechanical workshop) the execution 
of maintenance services for the 
provided equipment in Montenegro). 
Also a statement with the address of 
the technical service available in 
Montenegro. In case the technical 
service is not under the direct control 
of the bidder, a letter from the 
technical service manager endorsing 
their availability to provide assistance 
in the warranty period. 
 
In other words a sworn statement is an 
acceptable prove during the tender 
procedure. The successful tenderer will 
have to provide adequate prove of its 
relationship with the local workshop, 
e.g. contract satisfactory for the 
contracting authority.  

7. Would trucks without airbag for driver 
and passenger are eligible? 

Trucks  corresponding to Item 1, Item 

2, Item 3 and Item 6 has following 

requirement: "Airbags for driver and 

passenger". 

Due to the fact that only limited number 

of vehicle manufacturers offer air-bag 

as an option due to reasons of unclear 

safety benefits for the driver as well as 

due to the steering wheel 

configuration, requirement is amended 

as follows: 

 "Airbags for driver and passenger are 

optional" 

 



8. Can You provide a picture of a Street 
bins for waste collection, capacity 90 
lit, in order to see a shape of it? 

In Annex II it is written: 
Shape:  
Housing - self-standing, to be attached 
to the ground (concrete or asphalt) with 
screws, square (or near square) in 
basis, with rain hood.  
Housing is to be with apertures on two 
sides for selective waste:  paper, 
plastic, glass bottles and general 
waste.  
Doors placed on side of housing. 
Lockable. 1 universal key for all street 
bins. 5 reserve keys included. 
Inside housing, a movable inner bin is 
to be placed for waste collection. 
Capacity of inner bin is min. 90 litres 
Bin material: 
Housing and inner bin made of 
galvanized metal sheets. All metal 
parts must be solid and corrosion-
resistant. 
Bin height: 
min. 1000 mm 
Color: 
Protected by an anticorrosive color and 

final color.  

Covers  to be in next colours: Blue 
RAL 5015 (or equivalent) for paper 
waste – 20 pieces, Gray RAL 7023 
(orequivalent) for general waste – 20 
pieces, Green RAL 6024 (or 
equivalent) for glass bottles – 20 
pieces, Yellow RAL1021 (or 
equivalent) for plastic – 20 pieces. 
Safety standard: 
EN 840-1-5-6 



9.  

For item number: 

1.Refuse collection vehicle (6x4) 

2. Skip loading vehicle with grab crane 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

6. Street cleaning vehicle 

You have requested for: 

Motor brake, ABS, Breaking system made of 
2 independent air hydraulic circuit drums 
acting at rear and front wheels. The vehicle 
must also have a parking manual braking 
system acting at rear axle and an emergency 
brake built into service brake. 

Our question is: can we offer 2 independent air 
hydraulic circuit disc brakes acting at rear and 
front wheels with ABS system, Bus stop brake 
for refuse collector vehicle and motor brake? 

 

Both disc or drum brakes for front 
and/or rear wheels are acceptable. 



10.  

For item number: 

1.Refuse collection vehicle (6x4) 

2. Skip loading vehicle with grab crane 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

6. Street cleaning vehicle 

You have requested for: 

Airbags for driver and passenger 

There are different attitudes and opinions 

related to the existence of air bags in the 

trucks. Most brands that produce trucks, 

according to their research came to the 

conclusion that the air bags are dangerous and 

inefficient ,so they have made safer cabs, 

better safety belts… 

  

 
Please see answer to Q 7. 



11.  

For item number 

2. Skip loading vehicle with grab crane 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

6. Street cleaning vehicle 

You have requested: 

Engines with EURO 5 emission standard with 
AdBlue additive. 

Company „XYZ“ can offer engines with EURO 
5 emission standard but without need for 
AdBlue aditive. 

This is better technical solution with cost 

reduction so our question is to set 

specifications that offered engine can be EURO 

5 emission standard with and without AdBlue 

additive 

 

The engine must be EURO 5 
compliant with or without a possibility 
to use AdBlue additive. 
 



12.  

For item number: 

1.Refuse collection vehicle (6x4) 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

You have requested: 

Hidraulic oil; reservoir capacity min. 160 litres 

We have a better solution with a pump of 

the new generation that does not require 

large amounts of hydraulic oil as old 

technical solutions. This is a significant 

saving in cost and service upgrades 

This pump need tank of 120 liters and we 

are kindly asking you to do changes in your 

technical characteristics and make request 

for hydraulic oil reservoir min.120 liters. 

Items 1 and 3 have following 
requirement: “Hidraulic oil: Reservoir 
capacity min. 160 litres; Filtration with 
oil filter”. 
This requirement is hereby amended 
as follows: 
“Hidraulic pump – minimum pressure 
180 bar or the capacity of the 
hydraulic pump is so chosen that 
must satisfy required cycle time and 
compaction ratio in the tailgate.” 
  



13.  

For item number: 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

You have requested: 

Water tanks  

clean water, capacity min. 1400 litres 

waste water, capacity min. 1200 litres 

Our new technical solutions work with a 
small amount of water with higher 
performance and results. Smaller water 
tanks reduce production costs. 

Please give us possibility to offer clean 
water tank with capacity min 1000 l, and 
waste water tank with capacity min 800 l 

Please refer to the technical 

specifications. 

 



14.  

For item number: 

3. Refuse collection vehicle (4x2) 

You have requested: 

Mechanism for automatic washing attached 
on both sides of the door with a horizontal 
displacement 

Washing heads movable inside the container 
to the bottom using a hydraulic telescopic 
cylinders 

Our technical solution for mechanism for 
automatic washing is hinged from top of the 
superstructure and for washing heads is 
movable in position to wash bin using 
hydraulic cylinder 

 

 
If your technical solution is different 

from requested one you must provide 

documentary proofs or detailed 

technical capacity documentation that 

shows capacity or performance of 

offered technical solutions. 

 

 



15. On the page 16 Signature of the contract 
and performance guarantee you wrote: 

21.1 The successful tenderer will be 

informed in writing that its tender has been 

accepted (notification of award). Before the 

Contracting Authority signs the contract with 

the successful tenderer, the successful 

tenderer must provide the documentary 

proof or statements required under the law 

of the country in which the company (or 

each of the companies in case of a 

consortium) is established, to show that it 

does not fall into the exclusion situations 

listed in section 2.3.3 of the Practical Guide 

to contract procedures for EC external 

actions. This evidence or these documents 

or statements must carry a date, which 

cannot be more than 1 year before the date 

of submission of the tender. In addition, a 

statement shall be furnished stating that the 

situations described in these documents 

have not changed since then. 

QUESTION: 

Please let us know does the tenderer need 

to provide documentary proofs with the offer 

or is the declaration from the tenderer that 

there is not in any situation set out in section 

2.3.3. of the Practical Guide enough? 

 

Declarations (part 7 of the tender 
form) must be signed by the 
applicant, proves will be asked only to 
the successful tenderer. 



16.     

On the page 21, Text of the section 2.3.3 of the 

Practical Guide – Grounds for exclusion you wrote: 

Candidates or tenderers will be excluded from 

participation in procurement procedures if: 

a) they are bankrupt or being wound up, are 

having their affairs administered by the courts, 

have entered into an arrangement with creditors, 

have suspended business activities, are the 

subject of proceedings concerning those matters, 

or are in any analogous situation arising from a 

similar procedure provided for in national 

legislation or regulations; 

b) they have been convicted of an offence 

concerning their professional conduct by a 

judgment which has the force of res judicata; (i.e. 

against which no appeal is possible); 

c) they have been guilty of grave professional 

misconduct proven by any means which the 

Contracting Authority can justify; 

d) they have not fulfilled obligations relating to 

the payment of social security contributions or 

the payment of taxes in accordance with the legal 

provisions of the country in which they are 

established or with those of the country of the 

Contracting Authority or those of the country 

where the contract is to be performed; 

e) they have been the subject of a judgment 

which has the force of res judicata for fraud, 

corruption, involvement in a criminal organisation 

or any other illegal activity detrimental to the EU's 

financial interests; 

f) they are currently subject to an administrative 

penalty referred to in Article 96(1) of the 

Financial Regulation (BUDGET)/ Article 99 of the 

Financial Regulation (10th EDF). 

QUESTION: 

Please let us know if for situation described in 

(e) and (f) the declaration issued and signed by 

tenderer is enough)? 

For situations described under “e”, it 
is sufficient the production of a recent 
extract from the judicial record or, 
failing that, a recent equivalent 
document issued by a judicial or 
administrative authority in the country 
of origin or provenance showing that 
those requirements are satisfied. 
 
For situation described under “f”, a 
sworn statement is sufficient. The 
Contracting Authority will verify it with 
the relevant offices and databases of 
the European Union. 
 
 



17.   

On the page 22, Interpretation of the 

Grounds for exclusion you wrote: 

Tenderers must sign their applications 

including the declaration that they do not fall 

into any of the categories cited above 

QUESTION: 

Please explain in details what does “sign 

their applications” mean? 

It refers to Section D. Tender form for 
a supply contract. This form including 
the declarations (part 7 of the tender 
form) must be signed by the 
applicant.  
 

 


